Parallel Networks, LLC v. Adidas America, Inc. et al

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
TYLER DIVISION

Parallel Networks, LLC,

Plaintiff, Civil Action No. 6:10cv491-LED

V.

Adidas America, Inc., et al., JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Defendants.

American Suzuki Motor Corporation,
Counterclaimant,
2
Parallel Networks, LLC,

Counterdefendant.

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

AMERICAN SUZUKI MOTOR CORPO RATION'S ANSWER, AFFIRMATIVE
DEFENSES, AND COUNTERCLAIMS TO PARALLEL NETWORKS' ORIGINAL
COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Defendant American Suzuki Motor Corpooat (Suzuki) respeatfly submits this

Doc. 328

Answer, these Affirmative Defenses, and these Counterclaims in response to the Original

Complaint for Patent Infringement (Complairfiled by Plaintiff Paallel Networks, LLC

(Parallel Networks). To the extent not spieaily admitted herein, the allegations of the

Complaint are denied.
ANSWER

THE PARTIES

1. Suzuki is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of Paragh 1, and on that basis denies them.

2-5. The allegations set forth in Paragra 2-5 are not directed to Suzuki, and
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therefore no answer is require To the extent that a mEnse is requiredSuzuki lacks
information sufficient to form delief as to the truth of thallegations of Paragraphs 2-5, and
therefore denies them.

6. Suzuki admits that it is a corptoa with a place of business in Brea,
California. Suzuki denies themaining allegations of Paragraph 6.

7-61. The allegations set forth in Pargips 7—61 are not directed to Suzuki, and
therefore no answer is require To the extent that a mnse is requiredSuzuki lacks
information sufficient to form a belief as toettruth of the allegations of Paragraphs 7-61, and
therefore denies them.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

62. Suzuki admits that the Complaint putgaio set forth a cause of action that
arises under the patent laws oé tinited States, Title 35 of thénited States Code, but Suzuki
denies that Parallel Networks’aiins against Suzuki have any factual or legal basis. Suzuki
admits that this Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
88 1331 and 1338(a) inasmuch as the Complaint purfmatate claims for patent infringement
arising under Title 35 of the United Stat€ode, but Suzuki denies any wrongdoing or
infringement. Suzuki admits thatdbes business and derives revenue from gpoalgded to
persons or entities in the State of Texas andithatebsite is accessible from Texas. Except as
expressly admitted herein, to the extent that dtaph 62 contains any other allegations of fact
directed to Suzuki, they are denied. To themixieat Paragraph 62 contains conclusions of law
as opposed to allegations of fact, no answeedgsired. Suzuki lacks information sufficient to
form a belief as to the allegations of Parpir&2 directed to the othéefendants, and on that
basis denies them.

63. Suzuki admits that the Complaint putsdo base venue ihis District on 28
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U.S.C. 88 1391(b), 1391(c), and 1400(b); however Sudekies that this District is the most
appropriate or convenient forum &xercise jurisdiction over thisase. To the extent that
Paragraph 63 contains any othdegétions of fact directed to 3uki, they are denied. To the
extent that Paragraph 63 contains conclusioawfis opposed to allegations of fact, no answer
is required. Suzuki lacks information sufficient to form a belief as to the allegations of
Paragraph 63 directed to the other ddfnts, and on that basis denies them.

COUNT |

INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 6,446,111

64. Suzuki admits that, on its face, UE&tent No. 6,446,111 (the '111 patent) is
titted “Method and Apparatus for Client-Server Communication Using a Limited Capability
Client Over a Low-Speed Communications LinkSuzuki further admitshat, on its face, the
111 patent bears an issdate of September 3, 2002.

65. Suzuki is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to
the truth of the allegations of Paragraph 65, and therefore denies them.

66. To the extent that this allegation putpdo characterize what the claim of the
111 patent “cover,” this allegatn states a legal conclusionwaich no response is required.
To the extent that a response is required, Suagkis information sufficient to form a belief as
to the truth of the allegations of RRgraph 66, and therefore denies them.

67-82. The allegations set forth in Parpips 67—82 are not directed to Suzuki and
therefore no answer is require To the extent that a mnse is requiredSuzuki lacks
information sufficient to form a belief as toettruth of the allegations of Paragraphs 67-82, and

therefore denies them.

83. Denied.
84. Denied.
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85. Denied.

86. Denied.

87-302. The allegations set forth in Parahsa67-82 are not directed to Suzuki and
therefore no answer is require To the extent that a mEnse is requiredSuzuki lacks
information sufficient to form a belief as the truth of the allegations of Paragraphs 87-302,
and therefore denies them.

303. Suzuki denies any wrongdoing or infringement, and denies that Parallel
Networks is entitled to recover damages,aay other compensation, in any amount. Suzuki
lacks information sufficient to form a belief asth@ allegations of Pageaph 303 directed to the
other defendants, and oratlbasis denies them.

304. To the extent th&aragraph 304 conta any allegations dhct directed to
Suzuki, they are denied. To the extent tRatagraph 304 contains conclusions of law as
opposed to allegations of fact, answer is required. Suzuki lacks information sufficient to form

a belief as to the allegations of Paragraph 3eédctikd to the other defdants, and on that basis

denies them.
COUNT I
WILLFUL INFRINGEMENT
305. To the extent th&aragraph 305 contea any allegations dhct directed to

Suzuki, they are denied. To the extent tRatagraph 305 contains conclusions of law as
opposed to allegations of fact, answer is required. Suzuki lacks information sufficient to form
a belief as to the allegations of Paragraph 3@&ctkd to the other defdants, and on that basis
denies them.

RESPONSE TO PARALLEL NETWORKS’ PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Suzuki denies that it infringeor has infringed any valid ctaiof the '111 patent. Suzuki
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further denies that Parallel Networks is entittedany aspect of the relief requested against
Suzuki, including actual damages, costs, expemsiEsest, enhanced damages, attorneys’ fees,
and/or any other relief of any kind.

GENERAL DENIAL

Suzuki denies each and every allegation caethin the Complaint to which Suzuki has

not specifically responded or expressly admitted.
AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

Suzuki alleges and asserts flolowing defenses in response to the allegations in the
Complaint, undertaking the burden of proof ordg to those defenses deemed affirmative
defenses by law, regardless of how such defeaseslenominated herein. In addition to the
affirmative defenses described below, Suzuki specifically reserves all rights to allege additional
affirmative defenses that become known through the course of discovery. For its affirmative
defenses to the Complaint, Suzuki alleges as follows:

FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Failure to State a Claim)
306. Parallel Networks’ Complaint fails &tate any claim against Suzuki upon
which relief can be granted.

SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Noninfringement)

307. Parallel Networks’ claims are barrégcause Suzuki has not directly or
indirectly infringed any valid and enforceablaioh of the '111 patentSuzuki has no liability
for alleged infringement of the '111 patent. Malid and enforceable claim of the '111 patent
literally or equivalentlycovers or includes within its scopay products and/oelated parts and

components ever made, used, offered for salspolat by Suzuki. To thextent that Parallel
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Networks asserts that Suzuki indirectly infyes, either by contributory infringement or
inducement of infringement, Suzuki is not liableP@arallel Networks for the acts alleged to have
been performed before Suzuki knew that its actions would cause indirect infringement.

THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Invalidity)
308. Parallel Networks’ claims are barrezthuse the claims of the '111 patent are
invalid for failure to comply with the requirements of 35 U.S.C. § #04eq., including without
limitation each of the requirements in 35 U.S.C. 88 101, 102, 103, 112, and/or 116.

FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Waiver, Laches, Estoppel)
3009. Parallel Networks’ claims are barred, in whole or in part, by the doctrines of
waiver, laches, and/or estoppel.

FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Prosecution History Estoppel, Prosection Disclaimer, Prosecution Laches)
310. Parallel Networks’ claims are barreg the doctrines oprosecution history
estoppel, prosecution disclaimer, and prosecution laches.

SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Failure to Mark)
311. Parallel Networks’ claim for relief is litad in whole or in part by its failure
to comply with 35 U.S.C. § 287.

SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(No Injunctive Relief)
312. Parallel Networks’ claim fanjunctive relief is barré because, at a minimum,

there exists adequate remedies at law and becBarallel Networks’ claim otherwise fails to
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meet the requirements for such relief, includatgeast that Parallel Networks will not suffer
irreparable harm.

EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Impermissible Venue)
313. Venue in this judicial district is improper and/or inconvenient.

NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Impermissible Joinder of Defendants)

314. Parallel Networks’ joindeof multiple, unrelated dendants into this single
action is improper under Rule 20 of the FederaleRwf Civil Procedure in that the claims
asserted by Parallel Networks in the Complaln not arise out of the same transaction or
occurrence or series of transactions or ocowes as required by the Federal Rules, and is
prejudicial to Suzuki.

TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Failure to Mitigate)
315. Parallel Networks had a duty to mitegéts alleged damages and failed to do
so. Its damages are therefore either barred or reduced.

ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Defense - Other)

316. Suzuki provides notice th&intends to rely uponrgy additional defenses that
become available or apparent itigr discovery, and reserve itglt to amend this pleading and
to assert such additional defensesif appropriate, dete any of the above-delineated defenses
as discovery proceeds.

WHEREFORE, Suzuki denies that it infrirgger has infringed any valid and enforceable

claim of the '111 patent and further denies tRatallel Networks i€ntitled to any judgment
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against Suzuki whatsoever. Suzuki asks Bexiallel Networks’ Complaint be dismissed with
prejudice, that judgment be ergd for Suzuki, and that Suzuke awarded its attorneys’ fees,
expenses, and costs incurred in defending agRiastllel Networks’ Complaint, together with
such other relief the Court deems appropriate.
COUNTERCLAIMS

For its counterclaims against ParalleNetworks, LLC (Parallel Networks),

Counterclaimant American Suzuki MotGorporation (Suzukialleges as follows:
PARTIES

1. Suzuki is a California e¢poration with a principaplace of business at 3251
East Imperial Highway, Brea, California 92821-6722.

2. On information and belief, Paralldletworks is a Texas Limited Liability
Company with its place of business at 100FBrguson Street, Suite 602, Tyler, Texas 75702-
5756.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This is an action for declaratory edlifor which this Court has jurisdiction
under 28 U.S.C. 88 1331, 1338, 2201, and 2202.

4, By filing its Original Complaint for Pat¢ Infringement (Corplaint), Parallel
Networks has consented to the personal jurismictif this Court and purpter to assert claims
against Suzuki for infrigement of U.S. Patent No. 6,446,111 (the '111 patent).

5. To the extent the undging action brought by Paltal Networks against
Suzuki proceeds in this Distrjdhen venue as to these coual@ms is proper under 28 U.S.C.
88 1391(c) and 1400(b) because Pardlitworks is subject to ehCourt’'s personal jurisdiction
in this District and becauseettacts and circumstances allegedhe counterclaims are related

to the facts and circumstances alleged in the Complaint filed by Parallel Networks.
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6. Suzuki denies Parallel Networks’ ete of infringement of the '111 patent.
7. An actual controversy has arisen and moists between Suzuki and Parallel
Networks as to the noninfringemeartd invalidity of the '111 patent.

COUNTERCLAIM ONE

(Declaratory Judgment of Noninfingement of the '111 patent)

8. Suzuki restates and incorporates by reference each of the allegations in
Paragraphs 1-7 of its Counterclaims.

9. Parallel Networks purports to be thesignee of all right,ite and interest in
the 111 patent.

10. In this action, Parallel M&orks asserts in Paragita 83 of its Complaint that
Suzuki “has been and now is infringing at leaatral1 [of] the ‘111 patenh the State of Texas,
in this judicial district, and elsewhere fhe United States, by actie comprising making and
using its website at www.suzukicycles.com.”

11. Suzuki denies Parallel Networks’ claiofsanfringement and believes that the
Complaint has been filed without good cause.

12. An immediate, real, and justiciabtentroversy exists between Suzuki and
Parallel Networks concerning the alleged infringement of the '111 patent.

13. Suzuki is entitled to dealatory judgment that it Banot infringed, and is not
infringing, the "111 patent.

COUNTERCLAIM TWO

(Declaratory Judgment of Invalidity of the '111 patent)
14. Suzuki restates and incorporates rejerence each of the allegations in
Paragraphs 1-13 of its Counterclaims.

15. Suzuki denies that th&21 patent is valiind asserts that the '111 patent is
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invalid for failure to comply with the requirements of 35 U.S.C. 8§ éGsq., including without
limitation each of the requirements in 35 U.S.C. 8§ 101, 102, 103, 112, and/or 116.

16. An immediate, real, and justiciabtentroversy exists between Suzuki and
Parallel Networks concerningdlvalidity of the '111 patent.

17. Suzuki is entitled to declaratory judgment that the '111 patent is invalid.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Suzuki respectigirequests that the Couihd and declare as follows:

A. That Parallel Networks take nothing by its Original Complaint for Patent
Infringement and that the Original Complaifdr Patent Infringement be dismissed with
prejudice;

B. That Suzuki has not infringed, andhist infringing, any valid and enforceable
claim of the '111 patent;

C. That the claims of the '111 patent are invalid;

D. That this is an exceptional casader 35 U.S.C. § 285 and that Suzuki be
awarded all of its costsxpenses, and attorneys’ feesgether with interest; and

E. That Suzuki be granted such otlaed additional relief as the Court deems

just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Counterclaimant Suzuki demands tiljury on all isses so triable.
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Dated: November 29, 2010 Respectfully submitted,

/s Michael E. Jones

Michael E. Jones

State Bar No. 10929400
POTTER MINTON

A Professional Corporation
110 N. College, Suite 500
Tyler, TX 75702

T: (903) 597-8311

F: (903) 593-0846
mikejones@potterminton.com

Matthew J. Moore

LATHAM & WATKINS LLP
555 Eleventh Street, NW
Suite 1000

Washington, DC 20004-1304
T: (202) 637-2200

F: (202) 637-2201
matthew.moore@Iw.com

Attorneys for Defendant and

Counterclaimant American Suzuki Motor
Corporation

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that all counseff record who have consexd to electronic service are
being served with a copy of this document via the Court's CM/ECF system per Local Rule CV-
5(a)(3) on November 29, 2010. Anther counsel of record will be served by electronic mail or

first class U.S. mail on this same date.

/s/ Michael E. Jones
Michael E. Jones
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